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Finding Data Sets for Patrons 

Maura Valentino 

Introduction 

While the collection, organization and accessibility of data used for scholarly research has always been a 

topic of importance to researchers and librarians, recent movement towards the use of an open data 

model has led to a dramatic increase in the amount of data available for examination, study, citation 

and re-use.  In such an environment, librarians are increasingly tasked with finding actual data related to 

specific subjects, in addition to the traditional task of locating relevant scholarly articles.  Patrons may 

need data to support their research or to combine with their original data.  They may wish to examine 

previous research to determine if their current projects would benefit from the methodologies used or 

the data collected for existing studies.  Raw data is important to policymakers to help inform their 

decision making in both public and private organizations.  The reuse of data has gained increased 

importance in the production of scholarly articles.  For example, data from a single scientific study, The 

Framingham Heart Study, was referenced in 2,346 peer reviewed articles published in medical journals 

(Framingham Heart Study, 2012).  This information is prominently displayed and cited in the 

bibliography section of the Framingham Heart Study site.  Many of the data portals and projects have a 

bibliography page to show the value of the data being preserved.  Increasingly, research data is being 

used for purposes never imagined by the scholars who originally collected the data.  This increased 

distribution and sharing of data has energized numerous fields of research.   Librarians are uniquely 

positioned to help meet the growing data-centric needs of their patrons.  

This new opportunity also presents a new set of challenges for science and other librarians.  The amount 

of raw data available is immense and spans an increasing number of fields of study.  It can be 

anticipated that the amount of data available will grow significantly in the coming years as more and 
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more fields of research adopt the open data model.  While one might imagine that such data will be 

easy to locate and access through simple tools such as Google search, experience has shown that 

successfully accessing useful data sets presents unexpected challenges.  While many data repositories 

can be located through basic search techniques, the metadata associated with the actual data sets is 

often not harvested by traditional search engines.   Also, the data access interfaces the portals and 

projects present differ from repository to repository with little or no standardization.  Many of these 

data portals are poorly designed and difficult to use.  To successfully access such data users must be 

familiar with specific terminology, data access methodologies, and diverse data formats.  Librarians can 

leverage their knowledge of data access methodologies and metadata design standards to assist users in 

finding the data they need.  However, to accomplish this task, librarians must navigate through an ever 

increasing landscape of data portals, data projects, data centers, and institutional repositories.  This 

article provides a solid introduction to this challenging new environment which will enable librarians to 

better meet the data-centric needs of their patrons. 

It is interesting to note that many of the data centers and projects referenced in this article offer value 

to serious researchers and educators as well as casual users.  There are often sections of the website 

dedicated to offering advice on how the data can be used in education.  In addition, there are often 

pages on the website dedicated to casual users, with pre-defined searches or visual interpretation of 

data sets, such as interactive maps.  Many of the sites are academic or associated with a federal or state 

agency.  They do not charge for data and are not in competition with each other.    The various academic 

sites on data management, the supercomputer sites and the data portals themselves, have links to more 

data related sites, and the search becomes circular often leading back to the same data portals. 

Although all of the sites mentioned in this article allow access to data free of charge, the usefulness of 

such data is evidenced by commercial data centers that charge significant fees for access to their data 

sets.   
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Literature Review 

In recent years there has been a proliferation of data freely available to researchers around the world.  

As early as 1995, the United Kingdom pioneered the creation of data portals when they announced 

support for five new portals related to science and other disciplines (Data.gov.uk).  However, as recently 

as 2005, the literature complained of a lack of data availability and the failure of government to support 

aggregation of the massive amounts of data in their possession (Corti 2007).  Since 2005, governmental 

and other organizations have filled this void with a vengeance.  Presently, hundreds of data portals and 

thousands of data sets are widely available.  Examples of such projects include the Australian National 

Data Service (ANDS) and a 2011 study done to extract data deposition statements from articles in Pub-

Med (Névéol 2011).  Of course, the United States government has not been idle.   In 2010, the 

President’s Council of Advisors on Science and Technology (PCAST) presented a report stressing the 

scientific and economic advantages of making data sets available.   Among efforts announced by various 

federal agencies, the National Institutes of Health (NIH) will make data from the 1000 Genomes project 

publicly available for analysis.  Also, other agencies are exploring computational tools and algorithms to 

analyze data.  (Semeniuk 2012)  Having raw data available for serious researchers is important, but it is 

also of assistance to young students who may become researchers as they seek to understand how to 

use and analyze data. (Shapiro Ledley 2011)  As early as 2001, the value of using real data in classrooms 

was modeled. (Bondeson, Brummer and Wright 2001)  Many of the data repositories express this value 

clearly by dedicating specific pages to instructions on how to use the data with students at different 

levels of education. 

There have been some attempts to organize and explore data portals in the literature.  Kirlew studied 

data portals from the point of view of the scientist with a survey of how scientists in the biological 

sciences use, mention and cite data repositories (Kirlew 2011).  Marcial and Hemminger analyzed the 
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business models of science data repositories (Marcial, Hemminger 2010).  Lastly, Arlitsch  wrote a short 

review of three social science data portals.  But with the advent of funding agencies requiring data 

preservation and access, librarians who may be familiar with the data available in their own fields might 

need to know how to find data in many fields.  Chandler (2001) asserts that librarians will have to learn 

how to help patrons, who have high expectations, access new types of resources.  However, there is a 

gap in the literature for science and other reference librarians who are wading through unfamiliar 

territory in finding data sets for patrons. 

The agencies and universities are preserving vast amounts of data, but it is not necessarily visible or 

accessible to the untrained patron (Venkatraman 2010).  This creates an opportunity for librarians to 

provide a service to their patrons.  Librarians have been helping patrons find information from the 

beginning of librarianship.  In the past, the information required was typically found in the form of a 

book or a scholarly article.  Now data sets have been added into the mix, but the skills the librarian uses 

to assist the patron remain the same (Wolfe 2010).  Patrons may be skilled at using a one box search (as 

discussed in detail below) but this may not help them navigate the labyrinth of data repositories 

(Bronstein 2011). 

Librarians have been working within a system of rapid technological advances.   They have seen changes 

in user behavior and expectations, and they have had to adjust their workflows and develop new areas 

of expertise (Bronstein 2011).  The implementation of the open data model will have a similar effect.  As 

students and professors become of aware of the proliferation of available data sets, they will find a way 

to use them in their research and instruction.  Logically, they will need librarians to interpret what type 

of data set they need for their research or instruction with a reference interview, similar to what 

librarians  do now.  Patrons will also need help with the technology used to access the data sets.  Many 

different advances in technology, including CD ROMs and E-book readers, have led to increased 
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reference questions regarding a particular technology.  (Thomsett-Scott 2006)  (Hussain-Christian 2012).  

It would not be surprising to see, if not an increase in overall statistics, an increase in the number of 

patrons needing help finding or using data sets.  The literature generally supports the view that 

reference and science librarians have the skills accommodate this new interest. 

Diverse Data Sets Lead To a Diverse User Community 

There are many different types of library patrons who might benefit from access to open data and from 

the assistance of a librarian to help locate this data.  Undergraduate students may be interested in using 

data as a primary source for a paper or project.  While much information literacy is focused on helping 

undergraduates learn to find scholarly articles and navigate library databases, students may not have 

the skills necessary to find raw data sets.  Graduate students or faculty members may need to know if 

data they are interested in collecting for a particular project has already been collected by someone 

else.  While experienced researchers and scholars may be familiar with the data available in their 

specific fields, many scholars engage in cross disciplinary research in areas in which they are not 

specialists.  Such individuals can benefit from data access services. Other users of data are students and 

faculty in educational environments.  Raw data sets are an increasingly important part of education at 

every level.   Many of the websites listed have specific pages aimed at educators at all levels and a 

librarian can help lead them to appropriate resources.  A statistics student may need a large quantitative 

data set to analyze.  This type of patron would need a full, raw data set rather than a sub-set or 

visualization of the data.  However, there are also many casual users of data.  For example, medical 

patients may wish to access research relating to specific pharmaceuticals that have been prescribed for 

their treatment.  These types of users may not require full data sets but would benefit from simple 

tables with general results.  As one can see, all of these users require different data sets presented in 
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different formats to meet their needs.  Librarians who can match patrons with the data they require will 

be providing an important service to their libraries and their communities. 

Where to Start 

As discussed, various types of users will request different types of data sets for purposes we can foresee 

and assuredly for purposes we cannot.  Where does a librarian trained in one area of science go to find 

data in a less familiar discipline?  How does a general reference librarian help patrons from many 

departments find appropriate data sets?  The next sections explain several approaches to finding data 

sets, giving librarians a place to start.  The skills learned in answering reference questions and locating 

other types of resources can be used to help patrons in this new area. 

Internet Search Engines 

The literature acknowledges that many users start with Google in the quest for information (Duddy 

2009).  For some searches this can be a successful approach.  However, open access data portals may 

use metadata schemes for data sets that are not harvested by the popular search engines (Arlitsch and 

O’Brien 2010).  If the user knows exactly what type of data they need Internet search engines are 

capable of locating a portal or project with relevant data.  However, they are not likely to provide direct 

links to the data sets found within these portals, making the assistance of a skilled librarian of vital 

importance to the patron.  For example, searching on the phrase “ocean temperature,” in Google, 

returns a list of search results, the first two of which link to the NOAA National Oceanographic Data 

Center (NODC).  The first NODC link presents basic average temperature data.  The user can link from 

this page to actual data sets, but this ability is not obvious or clearly presented to the user.  This is a 

common problem with data portal design.  A user without assistance might easily overlook the existence 

of the data they require even if they successfully discover the data portal website.  The second NODC 

link results in an interactive map.  Again, the user can link from this web page to actual data sets, but 
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once again this feature is not obvious or intuitive. The third result returned by the query is the Marine 

Weather Underground website.  This is an authoritative website, but it presents interactive maps rather 

than data sets.  The fourth result links to the Windows to the Universe website which presents a wide 

variety of information of interest to Earth Science teachers.  However, it does not contain raw data sets.  

The remaining first page results consist of a commercial website that sells data on ocean temperatures 

and links to articles on ocean temperatures.  Of the first ten results only one is a data center with open 

access raw data. 

If the user searches on the phrase “ocean temperature data” the first result returned is a commercial 

website and the next four are NOAA National Oceanographic Data Center (NODC) links, although none 

of these links listed goes directly to a page where a user can browse or search for data.  The data is 

either sparsely detailed or requires the user to navigate to other webpages to obtain the desired data 

sets.  The sixth result returned by the search links to a National Aeronautics and Space Administration 

(NASA) website with GISTEMP data available for download.  Additional results returned by the search 

are unrelated to ocean temperatures.  As a result, adding the word “data” to the search terms returned 

links to only one additional useful source of data. 

Another example is provided by searching on the phrase “poverty in the US”.  The first three results 

returned by this search were commercial websites.  The fourth result was the National Poverty Center 

website.  This has good information about poverty in the United States, but it contains no raw data sets.  

The fifth result returned is the US Census Bureau (listed below) website which does have data sets 

available.  The remaining results do not provide links to data sources.  Further refining the search terms 

to the phrase “poverty in the US data” also yields a commercial website as the first result.  The next two 

results link to the aforementioned US Census Bureau website and the fifth leads to the National Poverty 

Center website found in the first search.  The remaining results link to articles or analysis of the US 
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Census Bureau results and do not contain data sets.  In this example, adding the word “data” to the 

search terms does not improve the results. 

A final example is the phrase “Cocaine addiction in adults”.  This first page returned from this query does 

not present links that contain data sets but contained links to commercial websites, articles and 

literature reviews instead.   Adding the word “data” to the search term improved the results for this 

search by returning a link to OAS/SAMHSA website (discussed below) which is an excellent website for 

data sets.  However, OAS/SAMHSA was the sixth result returned and as no description of the website is 

given a user might easily fail to notice the significance of this result and therefore fail to take advantage 

of data sets available.  

As one can see, using Internet search engines to find data sets can be a hit or miss affair.  However, a 

librarian can be of assistance to the user during such searches by directing the user to authoritative 

sources from the lists of results returned and by helping the user to navigate through the data portals 

found to ensure they locate the data sets they require. 

Moving Beyond Internet Search Engines 

As we have seen, finding raw data sets may not be as easy as typing search terms into Google.  But as 

interest grows in the raw data sets that lay behind the interpretations contained in scholarly articles, an 

increasing number of institutions are placing their resources behind the open-data movement.  

Universities are using their institutional repositories for data sets as well as research articles.  Some have 

even founded supercomputing centers.  Government institutions, both in the United States and 

elsewhere, are creating data projects.  Scientific journals are providing data archives and university 

consortiums and other groups are funding and implementing discipline specific data archives.  And while 

there are commercial sites that sell data sets, there are far more websites funded by non-profit and 

academic institutions.  These sites are not in competition with each other and often work closely 
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together to make data available to the widest possible audience.  As a result, there are a number of 

ways in which a skilled librarian can search for and discover data. 

Using Traditional Library Resources 

Fortunately, librarians may already be familiar with search tools that can aid in the discovery of data.  

For example, Pub-Med is a search tool that is familiar to many science librarians.  While this tool cannot 

be used to search directly for data sets it can still be a useful tool.  For example, one can limit a search to 

articles that are based on clinical trials.  Such a search may lead to the actual data on which the trial was 

based.  In addition, there are useful links on the home page of Pub-Med that may lead to relevant data 

portals.  For example, at the present time there is a link to ClinicalTrials.gov which is mentioned in the 

list of portals below.  There is also currently a link to BLAST, which is an open source software solution 

that allows the user to view large databases related to proteins.   

Web of Science is another tool, familiar to science librarians.  At the present time, there is no way to 

limit searches to only clinical trials, and there are no direct links to resources with data sets.  However, a 

researcher can search for articles on a particular subject and skim the article for information on the data 

used.  Some journals originally published online provide links which enable to user to download full data 

sets (or the user can view a summary.) If the article does not mention where the data is housed the 

researcher could be contacted directly for access to the raw data, or the user could subsequently search 

for data portals that provide access to the type of data referenced in the article. 

EBSCO is another tool familiar to most librarians.  Its search interface allows the user to choose “case 

study” as one of the limits on results.  While this may not lead directly to a data set, data is often 

collected for case studies and may be found through such a search.  Another limit the user can choose is 

“report” which again may lead to a relevant data set.  A search of ProQuest databases will also allow the 

user to limit the search to “report”, again often leading to an appropriate data set. So while familiar and 
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of some use in locating data, EBSCO and similarly familiar tools are not the most direct way to locate 

data sets for your patrons.  The following sections serve as a guide to the many other resources 

librarians can access to find a wide range of data sets to meet the needs of their patrons. 

Institutional Repositories 

There is an open data movement, similar to the open access movement, throughout academia.  

Researchers are interested in the data behind the interpretation presented in scholarly articles.  Small 

data sets may be preserved in the researcher’s institutional repository.   Large data sets may reside 

elsewhere, but there is often a link in the institutional repository to the original data.  Librarians 

understand how to locate the leading researchers in a particular field.   By searching the institutional 

repository associated with that researcher, the original data may be located. 

For example, a quick browse through the Oregon State University Scholars Archive found data sets on 

ocean currents, temperatures, and salinity as well as properties of wood.  Another quick browse through 

DSpace@MIT found data sets in health history, teacher absence and improving study skills.  Randomly 

browsing through institutional repositories is not likely to result in a logical data set for the needs of a 

particular patron.  However, if a particular researcher is quoted repeatedly in the literature, the 

institutional repository for her institution might be a good place to check for data in that field. 

Supercomputer Centers 

For very large data sets storage options are limited and a supercomputer center may be the only type of 

facility that can archive such data.  However, it is not the mission of most supercomputer centers to 

provide access to data but rather to enable researchers to store, process and manipulate very large data 

sets.  A supercomputer center may not allow users access to the data directly, but may work with other 

institutions to provide access to the data to allow for collaboration.  For example, the Texas Advanced 
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Computing Center (TACC) was founded in 2001 but in January, 2012 they announced a partnership with 

University of Texas at Austin to create a data repository so that users could more easily share data.  In 

the absence of such a project, data may be found at a supercomputer center through a thorough 

examination of the institutions website.  One may be able to discover information on which data sets 

have been used in related research and how to locate and interact with such data.  However, such 

searches can be difficult and time consuming.  Fortunately, several supercomputer centers have 

partnered with Extreme Science and Engineering Discovery Environment (XSEDE).  This portal provides 

access to data from participating supercomputer centers, and includes tools that can be used to analyze 

data from one or from combined data sets. http://www.tacc.utexas.edu/ 

If one explores the San Diego Supercomputer Center (SDSC) website, the user will find XSEDE as well as 

information on the new SDSC Cloud, an academic-based cloud storage system for large data sets which 

allows data sharing.  The website includes an education section that links to data sets created for 

educational purposes and also includes a link to a website with links to data portals.  

http://www.sdsc.edu/ 

The Computational and Information Systems Laboratory at the National Center for Atmospheric 

Research allows users to retrieve data via a user friendly interface that allows the user to browse topics 

and to narrow their search using facets.  Each user must register with the Research Data Archive, but 

after registration datasets are free.  http://rda.ucar.edu/ 

Lists of Portals and Projects 

With the increasing number of data portals and projects and the growing interest of researchers in 

archiving and sharing their data the list of websites that aggregate lists of data portals and projects is 

also growing.  With the advent of research libraries providing services in data management many 

universities now list websites where researchers can store data.  Research libraries typically approach 

http://www.tacc.utexas.edu/
http://www.sdsc.edu/
http://rda.ucar.edu/
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their data portal projects with the intention of providing their researchers a location to store and 

archive scholarly data.  The portals they list are for serious researchers rather than causal users or 

educators.  Government agencies and others sometimes provide such lists as well.   

Institution Description Link 

National Research 

Council Canada 

List of portals that offer raw data sets.   http://data-donnees.cisti-icist.nrc-

cnrc.gc.ca/gsi/ctrl?action=catba 

DataCite Collaborative effort of the British 

Library, BioMed Central and The Digital 

Curation Center, offering a list of 

portals. 

http://datacite.org/repolist 

University of Oregon Information on storing data that 

contains a list of portals. 

http://libweb.uoregon.edu/datamanag

ement/repositories.html 

University of 

Minnesota 

Listing of repositories. https://www.lib.umn.edu/datamanage

ment/datacenters 

Databib Presents an extensive list of 

repositories. 

http://databib.org/ 

Open Access 

Directory 

Has some portals listed. http://oad.simmons.edu/oadwiki/Data

_repositories 

San Diego Super 

Computer Center 

List of data repositories. http://education.sdsc.edu/discoverdat

a/course/view.php?id=21 

Woods Hole 

Oceanographic 

Institution 

List of data repositories related to the 

ocean sciences.   

http://www.whoi.edu/data/ 

http://data-donnees.cisti-icist.nrc-cnrc.gc.ca/gsi/ctrl?action=catba
http://data-donnees.cisti-icist.nrc-cnrc.gc.ca/gsi/ctrl?action=catba
http://datacite.org/repolist
http://libweb.uoregon.edu/datamanagement/repositories.html
http://libweb.uoregon.edu/datamanagement/repositories.html
https://www.lib.umn.edu/datamanagement/datacenters
https://www.lib.umn.edu/datamanagement/datacenters
http://databib.org/
http://oad.simmons.edu/oadwiki/Data_repositories
http://oad.simmons.edu/oadwiki/Data_repositories
http://education.sdsc.edu/discoverdata/course/view.php?id=21
http://education.sdsc.edu/discoverdata/course/view.php?id=21
http://www.whoi.edu/data/
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Data Projects 

There are many data projects around the world whose purpose is to provide an online location where 

researchers in the same field can share data.  Such projects often include free of charge access to data 

sets and occasionally training on how to make use of the included data sets.  These data projects are 

often aggregations of data sets from various agencies that can be analyzed together.  There are also 

often links to other data portals and projects with similar but distinct data.  These data projects are 

often specific to a particular field of study and the user must understand the terminology used in the 

field to successfully use them to access data.  Data projects are different from data portals in that 

projects aggregate data from specific institutions and allow access to such data.  Portals allow 

researchers to upload data for archiving and dissemination as well as allowing users to access and use 

the data currently archived.  As well as including the organization, description and links, information has 

been added to following table to determine if the user must register to get access to the data, if the user 

must be familiar with subject terminology and rating for ease of use.  (5- Easy and Intuitive to download 

data, 4- Not as intuitive, 3- Must click 3 or 4 times to locate the data, 4 – not intuitive/confusing, 5 – 

must leave page to get data) 

Scientific Data Projects 

Institution Description Ease 

Registration 

Required? Terminolgy? Link 

European 

Bioinformatics Institute 

Center for research and services in 

bioinformatics, dedicated to collecting, 

storing and curating data on bioinformatics 

in a way that allows efficient retrieval and 

use. 

2 No Yes http://www.ebi.ac.uk/ 

 

http://www.ebi.ac.uk/
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Deep Ocean Assessment 

and Reporting of 

Tsunamis (DART) 

Data from stations in large bodies of water, 

used to predict tsunamis. 

4 No Yes http://www.ndbc.noaa.gov/

dart.shtml 

Harvard University and 

the Smithsonian 

Institute 

Allows access to the images captured by 

NASA’s Chandra X-ray Observatory.  This 

telescope detects x-ray emissions in space 

and creates images to represent them.  

Scientists across the world are analyzing 

these images.   

4 No Yes http://chandra.harvard.edu/

edu/ 

 

National Center for 

Science and Engineering 

Statistics (NCSES) 

Allows the user to browse by subject and 

retrieve data sets as well as papers written 

using the data.   

5 No No http://www.nsf.gov/statistics

/ 

The Planetary Data 

System (PDS) 

Data from NASA’s planetary missions. 5 No No http://pds.nasa.gov/ 

The Space Physics Data 

Facility (SPDF) 

Data from NASA’s Heliospheric Science 

Division (HSD) 

4 No No http://spdf.gsfc.nasa.gov/ 

Harvard University and 

the Smithsonian 

Institute: Astrophysics 

Data System 

Digital library portal, with raw data sets 

available. 

3 No Yes http://adswww.harvard.edu/ 

NASA’s High Energy 

Astrophysics Science 

Archive Research Center 

(HEASARC) 

Provides scientific data for serious 

researchers, as well as data and exercises 

suitable for undergraduates 

5 No No http://heasarc.gsfc.nasa.gov/ 

The Geospatial Platform Geospatial data from the US government 

as well as state and local governments.  

The user can browse maps created from 

the geospatial data or create new maps 

using the data.   

4 No No http://www.geoplatform.gov

/home/ 

National Virtual 

Observatory 

Allows users to find data sets and even 

combine data from multiple sets and 

analyze it.   

5 No No http://www.us-vo.org/ 

http://www.ndbc.noaa.gov/dart.shtml
http://www.ndbc.noaa.gov/dart.shtml
http://chandra.harvard.edu/edu/
http://chandra.harvard.edu/edu/
http://www.nsf.gov/statistics/
http://www.nsf.gov/statistics/
http://pds.nasa.gov/
http://spdf.gsfc.nasa.gov/
http://adswww.harvard.edu/
http://heasarc.gsfc.nasa.gov/
http://www.geoplatform.gov/home/
http://www.geoplatform.gov/home/
http://www.us-vo.org/
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NASA’s Earth Observing 

System Data and 

Information System 

Processes, archives and distributes Earth 

science satellite data.  The user can access 

data from one of the twelve data centers 

that EOSDIS supports or by using the cross-

data center.  *** 

 

5 No Yes http://earthdata.nasa.gov/da

ta/discovering-data 

Sloan Digital Sky Survey Data from an eight year astronomical 

survey covering over one quarter of the 

sky.  There are three dimensional maps 

containing more than 930,000 galaxies and 

120,000 quasars.   

3 No Yes http://www.sdss.org/ 

Framingham Heart 

Study 

This study began in 1948 and continues 

today.  Over 5,000 participants received 

physical exams every two years and 

completed lifestyle surveys.  This data was 

used to inform risks to heart disease.  The 

user can access data from this study by risk 

factor. 

5 No No http://www.framinghamhear

tstudy.org/ 

General Social Survey 

(GSS) 

Maintains a dataset of one survey that 

began in 1972 and continues to this day.  It 

has questions on demographics, behavior, 

and attitudes 

5  No No http://www3.norc.org/gss+w

ebsite/ 

 

National Toxicology 

Program 

Contains data from over 800 different 

studies.  The user can search by chemical 

name or study type. 

1 No Yes http://ntp.niehs.nih.gov/ 

UNAVCO Allows free access to four types of data: 

Geodetic GPS/GNSS and Imaging data, 

strain and seismic borehole data and 

meteorological data.  Some have archived 

data and streaming data.   

4 No No http://www.unavco.org/cros

scutting/cc-data.html 

http://earthdata.nasa.gov/data/discovering-data
http://earthdata.nasa.gov/data/discovering-data
http://www.sdss.org/
http://www.framinghamheartstudy.org/
http://www.framinghamheartstudy.org/
http://www3.norc.org/gss+website/
http://www3.norc.org/gss+website/
http://ntp.niehs.nih.gov/
http://www.unavco.org/crosscutting/cc-data.html
http://www.unavco.org/crosscutting/cc-data.html
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International Tree Ring 

Data Bank 

Contains over three thousand data sets 

concerning tree rings.  The user can search 

by geography or by researcher and title 

4 No Yes http://www.ncdc.noaa.gov/p

aleo/treering.html 

Knowledge Network for 

Biocomplexity 

Research on ecological and environmental 

subjects.  The user can search for data or 

browse for data using an interactive map.   

3 Yes Yes http://knb.ecoinformatics.or

g/index.jsp 

The US Geographical 

Survey (USGS) 

Offers the national map project which puts 

together data from many vetted sources. 

3 No No http://nationalmap.gov/ 

National Oceanographic 

Data Center (NODC) 

Offers access to raw data sets as well as 

processed data.  Often the table of data is 

displayed immediately upon clicking on the 

topic link.  There is a small charge for some 

of the data here, but most data is provided 

free of charge.   

2 Yes Yes http://www.nodc.noaa.gov/

General/getdata.html 

 

Climate Data Guide Simple climate data, more useful to 

students than serious researchers. 

5 No No https://climatedataguide.uca

r.edu/about/community-

generated-expert-guidance 

 

Social Science Data Projects 

Institution Description Ease 

Registration 

Required? Terminolgy? Link 

United States Census 

Bureau 

This agency has been gathering data since 

1948.  The user can look at reports based 

on a type of business, a social issue or a 

geographic location.   

4 No No http://www.census.gov/mai

n/www/access.html 

United States Census 

Bureau State Data 

Center 

This has similar data to the US Census, but 

is organized by geographical region. 

5 No No http://www.census.gov/sdc/ 

The Integrated Public 

Use Microdata Series 

(IPUMS) 

Combines data from more than 111 

censuses in 35 countries.   

5 Yes No http://www.ipums.org/ 

http://www.ncdc.noaa.gov/paleo/treering.html
http://www.ncdc.noaa.gov/paleo/treering.html
http://knb.ecoinformatics.org/index.jsp
http://knb.ecoinformatics.org/index.jsp
http://nationalmap.gov/
http://www.nodc.noaa.gov/General/getdata.html
http://www.nodc.noaa.gov/General/getdata.html
https://climatedataguide.ucar.edu/about/community-generated-expert-guidance
https://climatedataguide.ucar.edu/about/community-generated-expert-guidance
https://climatedataguide.ucar.edu/about/community-generated-expert-guidance
http://www.census.gov/main/www/access.html
http://www.census.gov/main/www/access.html
http://www.census.gov/sdc/
http://www.ipums.org/
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American National 

Election Studies 

Maintains a collection of survey data 

relating to elections.  Users can download 

full survey sets or view tables showing one 

question over several years.  The actual 

text of the question(s) is included.   

5 No No http://electionstudies.org/in

dex.htm 

Panel Study of Income 

Dynamics (PSID) 

Since 1968, beginning with 5,000 families in 

the United States, information has been 

collected on employment, health, 

education and numerous other topics.   

1 No Yes http://psidonline.isr.umich.e

du/ 

 

Women and Social 

Movements in the 

United States 

Contains historical information on women 

and political movement 

5 No No http://womhist.alexanderstr

eet.com/ 

Cooperative Association 

for Internet Data 

Analysis 

Allows access to data sets on the practical 

and theoretical aspects of the Internet.   

4 No Yes http://www.caida.org/data/ 

The United States 

Department of 

Agriculture (USDA) 

Economic Research 

Center 

Provides easily understandable data 

concerning all things agricultural including 

farm economy and practices, food and 

nutrition, and rural economy.   

3 No No http://www.ers.usda.gov/ 

Economic and Social 

Data Service (ESDS) 

a British data website with information 

similar to the US Census website.   The 

website contains datasets from large 

government surveys and multi-national 

databanks 

4 Yes No http://www.esds.ac.uk/ 

 

United States Data Projects 

Institution Description Ease 

Registration 

Required? Terminolgy? Link 

http://electionstudies.org/index.htm
http://electionstudies.org/index.htm
http://psidonline.isr.umich.edu/
http://psidonline.isr.umich.edu/
http://womhist.alexanderstreet.com/
http://womhist.alexanderstreet.com/
http://www.caida.org/data/
http://www.ers.usda.gov/
http://www.esds.ac.uk/
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The National Library of 

Medicine and the National 

Institute of Health: National 

Center for Biotechnology 

Information (NCBI) 

Aggregates sources for genomic data.  Some are 

commercial databases, but others are good 

places to find free data sets such as Roadmap 

Epigenomics Data where one can find datasets or 

Map Viewer where one can view genetic maps.   

2 No Yes http://www.ncbi.nlm.ni

h.gov/genome/guide/h

uman/resources.shtml 

United States Geographic 

Survey (USGS) 

Offers several sites with raw data available as 

well as specific search tools to search different 

combinations of data.  Some of the data include 

aerial photography, satellite imagery, land use 

and resources and digital elevation raster data.   

1 No Yes http://eros.usgs.gov/#/

Find_Data 

GeoData.gov Data sets on topics from agriculture to the 

military. 

5 No No http://geo.data.gov/ge

oportal/catalog/main/h

ome.page 

NOAA Satellite and 

Information Services 

Historical data sets pertaining to weather 

available in Excel format.   

4 No No http://www.ncdc.noaa.

gov/paleo/historical.ht

ml 

US Environmental Protection 

Agency 

Data sets concerning greenhouse emissions.   4 No No http://epa.gov/climatec

hange/emissions/ghgda

ta/datasets.html 

      

Data Projects from Outside the United States 

Institution Description Ease 

Registration 

Required? Terminolgy? Link 

Open Data Canadian Government data portal, in support of 

open data initiatives. 

5 No No http://www.data.gc.ca/

default.asp?lang=En&n

=F9B7A1E3-1 

Natural Resources Canada Maps formatted for import into GIS applications, 

showing drainage, boundaries and populated 

places.   

4 No No http://www.data.gc.ca/

default.asp?lang=En&n

=F9B7A1E3-1 

http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/genome/guide/human/resources.shtml
http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/genome/guide/human/resources.shtml
http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/genome/guide/human/resources.shtml
http://eros.usgs.gov/#/Find_Data
http://eros.usgs.gov/#/Find_Data
http://geo.data.gov/geoportal/catalog/main/home.page
http://geo.data.gov/geoportal/catalog/main/home.page
http://geo.data.gov/geoportal/catalog/main/home.page
http://www.ncdc.noaa.gov/paleo/historical.html
http://www.ncdc.noaa.gov/paleo/historical.html
http://www.ncdc.noaa.gov/paleo/historical.html
http://epa.gov/climatechange/emissions/ghgdata/datasets.html
http://epa.gov/climatechange/emissions/ghgdata/datasets.html
http://epa.gov/climatechange/emissions/ghgdata/datasets.html
http://www.data.gc.ca/default.asp?lang=En&n=F9B7A1E3-1
http://www.data.gc.ca/default.asp?lang=En&n=F9B7A1E3-1
http://www.data.gc.ca/default.asp?lang=En&n=F9B7A1E3-1
http://www.data.gc.ca/default.asp?lang=En&n=F9B7A1E3-1
http://www.data.gc.ca/default.asp?lang=En&n=F9B7A1E3-1
http://www.data.gc.ca/default.asp?lang=En&n=F9B7A1E3-1
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Industry Canada Data on Canadian and United States trade 

activities with over 200 countries.  The data can 

be charted; viewed in a report, or exported to a 

CSV file. 

3 Sometimes No http://www.ic.gc.ca/eic

/website/tdo-

dcd.nsf/eng/Home 

 

The World Bank Interesting data, but not necessarily full data 

sets. Data is displayed with graphs and tables, 

and can also be downloaded in Excel format.   

5 No No http://data.worldbank.

org/ 

The International Comparison 

of Prices Program (ICP) 

Spending information for many countries. 4 No No http://pwt.econ.upenn.

edu/ 

Statistics Canada Contains government related data, including 

agriculture, crime, labor and health.   

4 No No http://www.statcan.gc.

ca/start-debut-eng.html 

 

 

*** EODIS Data Centers: 

a. Alaska Satellite Facility Synthetic Aperture Radar (SAR) Data Center (ASF SDC) 

b. Crustal Dynamics Data Information System (CDDIS) 

c. Global Hydrology Resource Center 

d. Goddard Earth Sciences Data and Information Services Center (GESDISC) 

e. Land Processes (LP) DAAC 

f. Langley Research Center Atmospheric Science Data Center (LaRCASDC) 

g. MODIS Level 1 Atmosphere Archive and Distribution System (MODAPS LAADS) 

h. National Snow and Ice Data Center (NSIDC) 

i. Oak Ridge National Laboratory (ORNL) 

j. Ocean Biology Processing Group (OBPG) 

k. Physical Oceanography (PO) 

l. Socioeconomic Data and Applications Data Center (SEDAC) 

 

http://www.ic.gc.ca/eic/site/tdo-dcd.nsf/eng/Home
http://www.ic.gc.ca/eic/site/tdo-dcd.nsf/eng/Home
http://www.ic.gc.ca/eic/site/tdo-dcd.nsf/eng/Home
http://data.worldbank.org/
http://data.worldbank.org/
http://pwt.econ.upenn.edu/
http://pwt.econ.upenn.edu/
http://www.statcan.gc.ca/start-debut-eng.html
http://www.statcan.gc.ca/start-debut-eng.html
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Data Portals 

Granting agencies and other institutions are beginning to require researchers to archive the original data 

that supports the research that they fund for use and review by other researchers. With this increased 

interest in data sharing there are many data portals and more are being created all the time.  Most data 

portals are specific to a particular field of study and users must often register to use the data but the 

data contained within is free to download and use. 

Institution Description Ease 

Registration 

Required? Terminolgy? Link 

Inter-University 

Consortium for Political 

and Social Research 

(ICPSR) 

Social science research data.   5 No No http://www.icpsr.umich.edu/

icpsrweb/ICPSR/ 

National Addiction & 

HIV Data Archive 

Program (NAHDAP) 

Promotes the preservation of and access to 

existing data sets relevant to addiction. 

5 No No http://www.icpsr.umich.edu/

icpsrweb/NAHDAP/ 

Archaeology Data 

Service 

Access to data related to archaeology. 5 No No http://archaeologydataservic

e.ac.uk/ 

Department of Energy 

(DOE) Data Explorer 

Access to the many data sets the DOE 

collects, with basic data meant for students 

and novice researchers. 

3 No Yes http://www.osti.gov/dataexp

lorer/ 

Digital Archaeological 

Record (tDAR) 

Data concerning archeological 

investigations including data sets.   

5 Yes Yes http://www.tdar.org/ 

Nucleic Acid Database 

(ndb) 

Three-dimensional structural information 

about nucleic acids.   

4 No Yes http://ndbserver.rutgers.edu

/ 

Crystallography Open 

Database 

Collection of crystal structures of organic, 

inorganic, metal-organic compounds and 

minerals, excluding biopolymers. 

4 No No http://www.crystallography.

net/index.php 

http://www.icpsr.umich.edu/icpsrweb/ICPSR/
http://www.icpsr.umich.edu/icpsrweb/ICPSR/
http://www.icpsr.umich.edu/icpsrweb/NAHDAP/
http://www.icpsr.umich.edu/icpsrweb/NAHDAP/
http://archaeologydataservice.ac.uk/
http://archaeologydataservice.ac.uk/
http://www.osti.gov/dataexplorer/
http://www.osti.gov/dataexplorer/
http://www.tdar.org/
http://ndbserver.rutgers.edu/
http://ndbserver.rutgers.edu/
http://www.rcsb.org/
http://www.crystallography.net/index.php
http://www.crystallography.net/index.php
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ClinicalTrials.gov Clinical trials funded by the US 

government.  The user can search or 

browse the trials by topic or geographic 

area.   Not every trial has results but each 

has the protocol and the main investigator. 

4 No No http://clinicaltrials.gov/ 

Gene Expression 

Omnibus 

Datasets pertaining to Epigenomics. 4 No No http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov

/geo/roadmap/epigenomics/ 

DrugLib.com Information pertaining to legal drugs and 

drug studies. 

5 No No www.druglib.com 

Database of Genotypes 

and Phenotypes 

(dbGaP) 

Database of phenotypes and genotypes 

and the data that has been produced 

regarding the interaction of genotype and 

phenotype.   

4 Yes Yes http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov

/gap 

Worldwide Protein Data 

Bank 

Protein data bank archive of 

macromolecular structural data. 

3 No Yes http://www.wwpdb.org 

Protein Data Bank 

Archive 

Repository of information about the 3D 

structures of large biological molecules.   

2 No Yes http://www.rcsb.org/pdb/ho

me/home.do 

Penn State Data repository for researchers at Penn 

State to archive and share their research. 

4 No No http://www.sdss.org/ 

 

The ICPSR also maintains several websites with more specific data: 

Institution Description Ease 

Registration 

Required? Terminolgy? Link 

National Archive of 

Criminal Justice Data 

(NACJD) 

Data sets related to criminal justice from 

very specific studies to broad national 

studies.   

4 Yes Yes http://www.icpsr.umich.edu/ic

psrweb/NACJD/index.jsp 

Substance Abuse and 

Mental Health Data 

Archive 

Data sets related to substance abuse and 

mental health.   

5 No No http://www.icpsr.umich.edu/ic

psrweb/SAMHDA/ 

Health and Medical 

Care Archive (HMCA) 

Datasets related to health and health care 

in the United States.    

5 No No http://www.icpsr.umich.edu/ic

psrweb/HMCA/index.jsp 

http://clinicaltrials.gov/
http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/geo/roadmap/epigenomics/
http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/geo/roadmap/epigenomics/
file:///C:/Users/valentim/Desktop/www.druglib.com
http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/gap
http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/gap
http://www.wwpdb.org/
http://www.rcsb.org/pdb/home/home.do
http://www.rcsb.org/pdb/home/home.do
http://www.sdss.org/
http://www.icpsr.umich.edu/icpsrweb/NACJD/index.jsp
http://www.icpsr.umich.edu/icpsrweb/NACJD/index.jsp
http://www.icpsr.umich.edu/icpsrweb/SAMHDA/
http://www.icpsr.umich.edu/icpsrweb/SAMHDA/
http://www.icpsr.umich.edu/icpsrweb/HMCA/index.jsp
http://www.icpsr.umich.edu/icpsrweb/HMCA/index.jsp
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National Archive of 

Computerized Data on 

Aging (NACDA) 

datasets related to aging in the United 

States.    

5 No No http://www.icpsr.umich.edu/ic

psrweb/NACDA/index.jsp 

 

Virtual Observatories and Data Grids 

Institution Description Ease 

Registration 

Required? Terminolgy? Link 

Virtual Solar 

Observatory 

Images from various solar observatories 

all over the world.   

3 No Yes http://sdac.virtualsolar.org/cgi

/search 

National Virtual 

Observatory 

Images from various telescopes across the 

world.   

4 No Yes http://www.us-vo.org/ 

Skyview (NASA funded) Database of astronomical image surveys 

that allows the user to simulate the 

images taken by telescopes or satellites.   

4 No No http://skyview.gsfc.nasa.gov/ 

Earth Observatory 

(NASA funded) 

Allows the user to create images of the 

earth using various underlying data sets.   

4 No No http://earthobservatory.nasa.g

ov/ 

 

Scientific Journals Data Archives 

Many scientific journals have policies requiring authors to submit original data to a data archive and 

some have established data archives to store the data associated with published articles.  As the 

purpose of these repositories is to provide open access to data all the data on these websites is freely 

available.  However, there may be an embargo period if patents are involved. 

Institution Description Ease 

Registration 

Required? Terminolgy? Link 

Journal of the American 

Statistical Association 

datasets from articles in the journal 5 No No http://lib.stat.cmu.edu/jasad

ata/ 

http://www.icpsr.umich.edu/icpsrweb/NACDA/index.jsp
http://www.icpsr.umich.edu/icpsrweb/NACDA/index.jsp
http://sdac.virtualsolar.org/cgi/search
http://sdac.virtualsolar.org/cgi/search
http://www.us-vo.org/
http://skyview.gsfc.nasa.gov/
http://earthobservatory.nasa.gov/
http://earthobservatory.nasa.gov/
http://lib.stat.cmu.edu/jasadata/
http://lib.stat.cmu.edu/jasadata/
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Data Archive 

Journal of Statistics 

Education 

Datasets from articles in the journal. 5 No No http://www.amstat.org/publ

ications/jse/jse_data_archiv

e.htm 

Dryad International repository of data underlying 

peer-reviewed articles in the basic and 

applied biosciences. 

5 No No http://datadryad.org/ 

 

 

Local Portals 

Students may wish to study subjects that are of local interest.  There are many data portals with data 

sets that may or may not have national interest but pertain to local topics.  Many states work in 

collaboration with each other and finding one data portal often leads to locating portals in other states.  

For example, the state of Oregon provides several data portals with information of local interest. 

Institution Description Ease 

Registration 

Required? Terminolgy? Link 

Northwest Alliance for 

Computational Science 

& Engineering 

Midwinter Bald Eagle count 4 No No (http://ocid.nacse.org/nbii/e

agles/ 

Northwest Alliance for 

Computational Science 

& Engineering 

IHNV Fish Virus Database 4 No No (http://gis.nacse.org/ihnv/) 

Oregon Explorer Information on natural resources in Oregon 

and bordering states.   

4 No No http://oregonexplorer.info/ 

Ocean Productivity Local to Oregon State University but 

international in its scope.  The website 

aggregates data from different sources to 

determine ocean productivity by tracking 

4 No No http://www.science.oregonst

ate.edu/ocean.productivity/ 

http://www.amstat.org/publications/jse/jse_data_archive.htm
http://www.amstat.org/publications/jse/jse_data_archive.htm
http://www.amstat.org/publications/jse/jse_data_archive.htm
http://datadryad.org/
http://ocid.nacse.org/nbii/eagles/
http://ocid.nacse.org/nbii/eagles/
http://gis.nacse.org/ihnv/
http://oregonexplorer.info/
http://www.science.oregonstate.edu/ocean.productivity/
http://www.science.oregonstate.edu/ocean.productivity/
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available carbon. 

 

Conclusion 

The open data movement has led to a dramatic increase in the amount of data freely available to library 

patrons.  This new data landscape provides challenges and opportunities for librarians and researchers.  

By leveraging their existing experience in search methodologies librarians can function as a powerful 

resource for patrons who might benefit from the many data sets available.  In this way, librarians can 

expand the range of services they provide to their patrons and communities. 

The information landscape is changing and librarians are providers of information.  As more researchers 

see the value of open data and more grant funding agencies require the sharing of data, library patrons 

will require more help finding and using existing data.  This is another service the library can provide.  

Data is expensive to produce and librarians can provide a service that increases the value to the library 

to the university. 
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